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MANAGEMENT REPORT TO THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER ON THE AUDIT OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN INSTITUTE FOR DRUG-FREE SPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013
INTRODUCTION

1. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, to express a conclusion on the annual performance report in the management report and to report on material findings relating to compliance with specific requirements in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No.25 of 2004). Our engagement letter sets out our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the accounting officer in detail. 

2. This management report includes audit findings arising from the audit of the financial statements, reporting on predetermined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations for the year ended 31 March 2013 which were communicated to management and includes their response to these findings. The report also includes information on the internal control deficiencies that were identified as the root causes for the matters reported. Addressing these deficiencies will assist in ensuring an improvement in the audit outcomes.

3. The management report consists of an executive summary, detailed audit finding which are contained in annexure A, B and C and also annexure D regarding financial health ratios and trends.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SECTION 1: Meetings with oversight bodies and those charged with governance 
4. During the audit cycle we met with key stakeholders to communicate matters relating to the audit outcomes of the entity and emerging risks. Insight was provided on the drivers of the controls that impact these audit outcomes to enable corrective action to be taken.

5. Meetings were conducted as follows:
· Key Control Meetings

12 November 2012
4 February 2013

· Portfolio Committee Meeting

9 October 2012
· Audit steering committee meeting(with CEO)

05 June 2013

010 June 2013

021 June 2013
· Audit committee
20 May 2012

21 July 2012

14 February 2013

16 May 2013
6. At these meetings commitments were made to address improvements in the internal control environment with the objective of achieving a clean audit outcome. The commitments given and the progress made on previous commitments are included under section 2, part F – Status of implementation of commitments and recommendations.
SECTION 2: MATTERS RELATING TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

PART A – MISSTATEMENTS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
7. Material misstatements in the financial statements were identified during the audit. These misstatements were not prevented or detected by the entity’s system of internal control. These material misstatements also constitute non-compliance with the section 40(1) of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 
	Material misstatements
	Impact

R
current year
	Impact

R
prior year

	Financial statement item
	Finding 

	Occurred in prior year
(“Yes/ “No”)
	
	

	Material misstatements not corrected 

	 Inventory
	Difference between recalculated inventory and inventory per cost
	No
	R      13 120
	

	Inventory
	Foreign exchange differences incorrectly included in inventory
	No
	R        7 040
	

	Property plant and equipment
	Tracking of individual assets
	Yes
	R      28 497
	

	Property plant and equipment
	Leasehold expenditure incorrectly expensed
	No
	R      24 584
	

	Revenue
	Sales invoices translated at incorrect spot rates
	No
	R      16 405
	

	Material misstatements corrected 

	Disclosure: Irregular expenditure
	Non-compliance with supply chain prescripts
	Yes
	R    307 782
	

	Expenditure
	Operating leases not straight lined
	Yes
	R      10 120
	

	Disclosure: Change in accounting estimates
	Incomplete disclosure for change in accounting estimates for intangible assets
	Yes
	R      25 974
	

	Disclosure: Change in accounting estimates
	Incomplete disclosure for change in accounting estimates for property plant and equipment
	Yes
	R      15 984
	

	Disclosure: Cash flow statement
	Amount disclosed as cash and cash equivalents doesn’t agree to bank account
	Yes
	R        2 000
	

	Accruals
	Incomplete accruals recorded
	No
	R      10 499
	

	Disclosure: Employee benefits
	Inaccurate employee benefits disclosed 
	Yes
	R      65 486
	R          5 440

	Disclosure: Operating lease commitments
	Incomplete accounting for operating lease commitments
	No
	R      86 047
	

	Disclosure: Operating lease commitments
	Inaccurate disclosure for operating lease commitments
	No
	R      13 568
	

	Disclosure: Finance lease 
	Gross minimum lease payments incorrectly calculated
	No
	R        2 204
	

	Disclosure: Related party disclosure
	Incomplete related party disclosure
	No
	R    795 000
	

	Property plant and equipment
	Incorrect useful lives and lack of de-recognition of assets (Cost)
	No
	R 1 604 240
	 

	Property plant and equipment
	Incorrect useful lives and lack of de-recognition of assets (accumulated depreciation)
	No
	-R 1 604 240
	

	Prepayments
	Pre paid assets not recognised
	No
	R      84 000
	

	Account receivables
	Receivables disclosure incomplete: Aging incorrect categories
	No
	n/a
	

	Account receivables
	Debtors with negative balances not reclassified
	Yes
	R      26 000
	


PART B – MATTERS TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE USERS 
ADDITIONAL MATTER PARAGRAPHS 
The following additional matter paragraphs will be included in our auditor’s report to draw the users’ attention to matters regarding the audit, the auditor’s responsibilities and the auditor’s report:

Unaudited supplementary schedules
8. The supplementary information set out on pages 64 to 74 does not form part of the financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.
PART C – CONCLUSION ON THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT
Included below is our conclusion on the report on the annual performance report. All matters reported under the basis for conclusion and additional matter will be included in the auditor’s report. 

REPORT ON PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

Introduction

9. I have audited the annual performance report of the South African Institute for Drug-Free Sport for the year ended 31 March 2013, as set out on pages … to …

The accounting officer’s responsibilities

10. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual performance report in accordance with the identified performance management and reporting framework, as defined in paragraph 6 of General Notice 839 of 2011, regarding the planning, management, monitoring and reporting of performance against predetermined objectives and for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of the annual performance report that is useful and reliable. 

The Auditor-General’s responsibilities

11. As required by sections 4 and 20 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), read with General Notice 839 of 2011, issued in Government Gazette 34783 of 28 November 2011, my responsibility is to prepare an audit conclusion on the annual performance report.   

12. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000: Assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historical information. 

I will report on whether I have received all the information and explanations required to conduct the engagement or if I became aware of additional information, the omission of which may result in the annual performance report being materially misstated or misleading.
13. I provide reasonable assurance with respect to the usefulness of the information contained in the annual performance report.  

I further provide reasonable assurance with respect to the reliability of the following selected material programme as set out in the annual performance report:
· Doping control and drug testing
· Results management

· Education, research and outreach
14. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability as required by the identified performance management and reporting framework.

15. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the requirements of the relevant reporting frameworks and whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant as required.

16. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).

17. The audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the usefulness of the annual performance report and reliability of the selected programmes as set out in the annual performance report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual performance report. Because of the test nature and other inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, there is an unavoidable risk that some, even material, misstatements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAE 3000. The procedures performed include the following:

· Understanding and testing the internal policies, procedures and controls relating to the management of and reporting on performance information

· Evaluating and testing the processes, systems, controls and review of documentation maintained at the audited institution to support the generation, collation, aggregation, monitoring and reporting of the performance indicators and targets

· Evaluating, testing and confirmation of the usefulness of planned and reported performance information in accordance with the identified performance management and reporting framework 

· Conducting detailed audit testing and obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence to verify the reliability (validity, accuracy and completeness) of reported performance information.

18. I believe that the evidence obtained from the work performed provides an appropriate basis for the reasonable assurance conclusions expressed below.
Usefulness of annual performance report
Consistency

Reported targets not consistent with planned targets
Basis for qualified conclusion
19. Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires that the strategic plan should form the basis for the annual report, therefore, requiring the consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between planning and reporting documents. A total of 42% (>20%) of the reported targets are not consistent with the targets as per the approved strategic plan. This is due to the lack of policies and procedures not being implemented to ensure compliance with treasury regulations.
Measurability
Performance targets not time bound 

Basis for qualified conclusion

20. The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI) requires that the time period or deadline for delivery be specified. A total of 46% (>20%) of the targets were not time bound in specifying a time period or deadline for delivery. This is due to the lack of policies and procedures not being implemented to ensure compliance with treasury regulations.

Reliability of selected programmes in the annual performance report
Unmodified conclusion 
18. In my opinion, the performance information of doping control and drug testing, results managements and education, research and outreach as set out in the annual performance report is reliable, in all material respects, in accordance with the identified performance management and reporting framework
PART D – FINDINGS ON COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
Included below are material findings of non-compliance with specific requirements in key applicable laws and regulations.
Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports
21. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with generally recognised accounting practice as required by section 55(1) (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected, which resulted in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.
Procurement and contract management
22. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.
Internal audit function

23. The accounting authority did not ensure that the internal audit function existed, as required by section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 27.2.2 and 27.2.3.
Expenditure management

24. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.
Budget

25. Expenditure was incurred in excess of the budget which is contrary to section 53(4) of the PFMA.
PART E – INTERNAL CONTROL 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DRIVERS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
26. The implementation of effective internal control helps in the achievement of important objectives and sustained and improved performance. Objectives are derived from the regulatory environment and fall into the following categories:
· Operations – Effectiveness and efficiency of operations including goals for operational and financial performance and safeguarding resources against loss (financial and performance management)

· Reporting – Pertaining to the reliability of reporting including internal and external reporting of financial and non-financial information

· Compliance – Pertaining to compliance with laws and regulations.
27. Objectives are driven by the mandate and the mission and vision of the organisation. Setting objectives is a prerequisite to internal control and a key part of strategic planning.
28. Internal control is a multi-dimensional iterative process of ongoing tasks and activities, affected by the people not just policies and systems, which provide assurance concerning the achievement of objectives. The fundamental principles contained in the drivers of internal control below must be present and operate together in order for the system of internal control to be effective. 
29. For purposes of focusing corrective action, the principles of the different components of internal control have been categorised under leadership, finance and performance management and governance. These are the drivers of internal control.

30. The leadership of an organisation sets the tone from the top regarding the importance of internal controls and expected standards of conduct. This establishes the control environment which is the foundation for the other components of internal control and provides discipline, process and structure. In order to establish what control activities (e.g. policies and procedures) are required to ensure achievement of the control objectives a risk assessment should be conducted. The availability of accurate and complete information and the communication of information, another component of internal control, are required to carry out the day-to-day internal control activities. Thereafter there should be ongoing monitoring of activities (good governance) to ascertain whether all components of internal control are present and functioning.
31. When internal control is effective, management and those charged with governance have reasonable assurance that operations are managed effectively and efficiently, financial and non-financial reporting is reliable and laws and regulations are complied with.

32. Below is our assessment of the implementation of the drivers of internal control based on significant deficiencies identified during our audit of the financial statements, the annual performance report and compliance with laws and regulations. Significant deficiencies occur when internal controls either do not exist or are not appropriately designed to address the risk or are not implemented and which either had or could cause the financial statements or the annual performance report to be materially misstated and material non-compliance with laws and regulations to occur. 
33. When the required preventative or detective controls are in place, it is assessed with a SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 


, when progress on the implementation of such controls were made but improvement is still required or where the actions taken are not or have not been sustainable, it is assessed with a SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 


, while  SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 


 indicates that internal controls are not in place and intervention is required to design and implement appropriate controls. The movement in the status of the drivers from the previous year-end to the current year-end assessment is indicated, collectively for each of the three audit dimensions under the three fundamentals of internal control, with a  SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 


(improved),  SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 


 (unchanged) or a  SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 


 (regressed). The status of the commitments made by management is reported in part F.
	                                       The audit dimensions

Fundamentals

 of internal control
	Financial 
	Performance objectives
	Compliance with laws and regulations

	Leadership
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr

	Overall movement from previous assessment


	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Provide effective leadership based on a culture of honesty, ethical business practices and good governance, protecting and enhancing the best interests of the entity
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance reporting and compliance and related internal controls
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Implement effective HR management  to ensure that adequate and sufficiently skilled resources are in place and that performance is monitored
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable and support understanding and execution of internal control objectives, processes and responsibilities
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to address internal control deficiencies
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Establish an IT governance framework that supports and enables the business, delivers value and improves performance
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	Financial and performance management
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr

	Overall movement from previous assessment


	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible and available to support financial and performance reporting
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Implement controls over daily and monthly processing and  reconciling of transactions
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations


	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Design and implement formal controls over IT systems to ensure the reliability of the systems and the availability, accuracy and protection of information
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	Governance
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr
	Current Yr
	Prior Yr

	Overall movement from previous assessment


	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Implement appropriate risk management activities to ensure that regular risk assessments, including consideration of IT risks and fraud prevention, are conducted and that a risk strategy to address the risks is developed and monitored
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Ensure that there is an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit that identifies internal control deficiencies and recommends corrective action effectively
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 




	· Ensure that the audit committee promotes accountability and service delivery through evaluating and monitoring responses to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the internal control environment including  financial and performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations
	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 



	 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 





LEADERSHIP
Oversight responsibility
34. The accounting authority did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility over compliance with laws and regulations by ensuring that a system is developed to ensure that non-compliance does not occur and, consequently a qualified conclusion on the report on predetermined objectives was issued and irregular expenditure was incurred due to non-compliance with supply chain management regulations.

Human resource management 
35. There are no performance agreements in place between the entity and employees.
Policies and procedures

36. Although the public entity has a supply chain management policy in place the monitoring of adherence to the policy is not effective resulting in the reported instances of non-compliance with the PFMA and Treasury Regulations, as highlighted in this report. 
Action plans to address internal control deficiencies 

37. The public entity developed a plan to address internal and external audit findings, but adherence to the plan did not bring about the changes in the outcome because the actions included were too general. This resulted in findings from the prior year being repeated in this year.
FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

Regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports
38. As indicated in section 2, part A of this report, the financial statements contained numerous misstatements that were not identified by the public entity’s system of internal control. This was mainly due to complete financial statements not being prepared more regularly during the course of the year. The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misstatements as highlighted in this report, largely because the financial statements were incomplete at that point.
39. The report on predetermined objectives was not compiled properly as reported targets were not consistent with the planned targets as per the public entity’s strategic plan. Furthermore, reasons for major variances between planned and actual achievements were not explained in the annual performance report as per the National Treasury annual report preparation guide.
40. Non-compliance with laws and regulations could have been prevented had compliance been properly evaluated and monitored.
GOVERNANCE

Internal audit 

41. The accounting authority did not ensure that a system of internal audit under the control and direction of an audit committee was established when the contract of the prior internal auditors expired.
SUMMARY 

42. The matters above, as they relate to thefindings on the annual performance report and findings on compliance with laws and regulations, will be summarised in the auditor’s report as follows:

Leadership
43. Leadership did not ensure that there are systems in place to ensure compliance with laws and regulation with regards to performance management, and supply chain management. 
Financial and performance management
44. Management did not compile regular financial statements, nor did they perform a thorough review of both the financial statements and the performance information. They do however provide quarterly financial information to the Board. The entity’s financial improvement plan was not monitored and thus sufficient progress to address the control deficiencies relating to compliance with laws and regulations has not been made, as also reported during the previous financial year.
Governance
45. The accounting authority did not ensure that a system of internal audit under the control and direction of an audit committee was established when the contract of the prior internal auditors expired.
PART F – STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF COMMITMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
46. Below is our assessment of the progress on commitments made by senior management, the accounting officer and audit committee to address audit outcomes in the prior and current years. 
	No
	Commitment (core problem)
	Made by
	Date
	Status

	1.
	Competitive bidding process not followed
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	2.
	Prior year irregular expenditure not accurately disclosed
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Implemented

	3.
	Price quotations not invited for procurement below R500 000
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	4.
	Procurement policy
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	5.
	Inconsistency between planned targets / indicators and reported targets / indicators
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	6.
	Variances between planned and reported targets are not explained in the annual performance report
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	7.
	Tracking the movement of individual assets
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	8.
	New positions filled were not advertised
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Implemented

	9.
	Reclassification of PAYE
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Implemented

	10.
	No provision raised for doubtful debt
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Implemented

	11.
	Consolidated fourth quarter performance report does not agree to the annual performance report
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Implemented

	12.
	Key performance indicators not specific
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed

	13.
	Approved suppliers listing
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Implemented

	14.
	Performance bonuses <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TITLE"/> 

 </tm:format> 
	CEO
	15 Dec 2012
	Not addressed


47. Six audit recommendations accepted by management in the prior year regarding the matters included in the auditor’s report and other important matters were implemented or alternative actions were taken which resolved the prior year audit findings. While seven findings are not addressed. 
SECTION 3: SPECIFIC FOCUS AREAS

PART A – PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

Irregular expenditure

48. R 307 782 (100%) of irregular expenditure incurred in the current financial year was as a result of the contravention of SCM legislation. 100 per cent (100% prior year) of this irregular expenditure was identified during the audit process and not detected by monitoring processes of the entity. The root cause of the lack of effective prevention and detection are oversight by the relevant officials who did not identify that three quotations were not obtained as required.
PART B – FINANCIAL INDICATORS
49. Management is responsible for the sound and sustainable management of the affairs of the entity and for implementing an efficient, effective and transparent financial management system for this purpose, as regulated by the PFMA.

50. Our audit included a high-level assessment of selected financial indicators as at year-end. The purpose of the assessment is to provide management with an overview of financial indicators to enable timely remedial action where financial health and service delivery may be at risk. The information should be used to complement rather than be a substitute for management’s own financial assessment.

51. The entity’s financial indicators have been assessed according to the following areas and are set out in the table below:

· budgets

· expenditure management

· revenue management

· asset and liability management 

· conditional grants

52. The analyses on which the information in the table is based are contained in annexure D. The table is followed by overall high-level comments on the risks posed by the assessment of the financial indicators.
	FINANCIAL INDICATORS AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

	(Limitation = unable to obtain sufficient appropriate information)

	BUDGETS

	1.1
	Percentage over-spending of the final approved operating expenditure budget.
	Not over-spent
	% over-spent
	Limitation

	
	
	
	16
	n/a

	

	1.2
	Percentage under-spending of the final approved capital budget.
	Not under-spent
	% under-spent
	Limitation

	
	
	
	53
	n/a

	

	EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

	2.1
	Creditor-payment period. 
	Days
	Limitation

	
	
	61
	n/a

	

	2.2
	Creditors as a percentage of cash and cash equivalents.
	Bank in overdraft
	%
	Limitation

	
	
	No
	534
	n/a

	

	REVENUE MANAGEMENT

	3.1
	Debtor-collection period (before impairment).
	Days
	Limitation

	
	
	149
	

	

	3.2
	Debtor-collection period (after impairment).
	Days
	Limitation

	
	
	n/a
	

	

	3.3
	Debtor’s impairment provision as a percentage of accounts receivable.
	% debtors impaired
	Limitation

	
	
	n/a
	

	

	3.4
	Bad debt written-off as a percentage of revenue for services rendered on credit (revenue not collected).
	% bad debt written-off
	Limitation

	
	
	n/a
	

	

	ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

	4.1
	A deficit for the year was realised (total expenditure exceeded total revenue).
	No
	Yes
	Limitation

	
	
	
	
	

	

	4.2
	A net current liability position was realised (total current liabilities exceeded total current assets).
	No
	Yes
	Limitation

	
	
	
	
	

	

	4.3
	A net liability position was realised (total liabilities exceeded total assets).
	No
	Yes
	Limitation

	
	
	
	
	

	

	4.4
	The year-end bank balance was in overdraft.
	No
	Yes
	Limitation

	
	
	
	
	

	

	4.5
	Net cash flows for the year from operating activities were negative.
	No
	Yes
	Limitation

	
	
	
	
	

	

	4.6
	Percentage of PPE and / or intangible assets impaired.
	% PPE and intangible assets impaired
	Limitation

	
	
	51
	

	

	4.7
	Percentage of loan receivables (loans awarded) and/or investments impaired.
	% loans  and investments impaired
	Limitation

	
	
	0
	

	

	The above assessment is based on financial statement amounts, adjusted for uncorrected misstatements that resulted in the modification of the audit opinion.


53. The current expenditure budget was over-spent for the financial year by an amount of R 2 587 000 which represented 16 % when rounded up of the final budget.  This is concerning as the entity is required to operate within its budget.

54. No funds were used for purposes other than intended.
55. The entity will utilise 24% of the next year’s appropriation funds to fund current year expenditure that was disclosed as accruals in the current financial statements.

56. The entity has regressed on expenditure management when compared to prior year as creditors were paid on an average of 61 days. 
57. The entity derives the majority of its revenue from grants from government with some revenue derived from own operations.  Revenue management is effective as no debtors’ impairments or write-offs were necessary.

58. Asset and liability management ratios indicate that they were not effectively managed. However there have been no major losses in terms of impairment or irrecoverable debts. Liabilities exceeded assets and expenses exceeded revenue. This was due to:
· Increased results management as result of high profile athletes that tested positive, resulted in additional expense in this category R1 428 000
· Increased laboratory analysis costs due to an increase and shift in focus in testing R659 000. This also resulted in increased courier cost R365 000 and DCO remuneration R614 000
· The sports law project was launched due to the review of doping control code. This was not budgeted for and resulted in unplanned spend of R227 000
59. The entity is currently technically insolvent and will only be able to survive with the continued support of the Department of Sport and Recreation. 
SECTION 4: EMERGING RISKS

Accounting and compliance matters 

60. New pronouncements/requirements

· The ASB has issued the following Standard of GRAP that are not yet effective for the reporting period but which become effective from 1 April 2013

· GRAP 25: Employee benefits

· The ASB has issued the following 5 Standards of GRAP that are not yet effective for the reporting period and for which the effective date has not yet been determined:

· GRAP 18: Segment reporting

· GRAP 20: Related party disclosures

· GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under common control

· GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not under common control

· GRAP 107: Mergers

New legislation

Treasury Regulations

61. The Treasury Regulations are currently being revised, which may introduce a number of new requirements once effective.
Audit opinion on predetermined objectives

62. The Auditor–General of South Africa (AGSA) is increasing its focus on predetermined objectives with the intention to express an opinion on the report on predetermined objectives. This may lead to negative audit outcomes if control measures are not adequately monitored.
SECTION 5: RATINGS OF DETAILED AUDIT FINDINGS 
63. For the purposes of this report, the detailed audit findings included in annexures A to C have been classified as follows:

· Matters to be included in the auditor’s report - These matters should be addressed as a matter of urgency.
· Other important matters – These matters should be addressed to prevent the likelihood that these matters may in future lead to material misstatements of the financial statements, material findings on predetermined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations.

· Administrative matters – These matters are unlikely to result in material misstatements of the financial statements, material findings on predetermined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations.
SECTION 6: CONCLUSION

64. The matters communicated throughout this report relate to the three fundamentals of internal control which should be addressed to achieve sustained clean administration. The AGSA staff remains committed to assisting in the process of identifying and communicating good practices to improve governance and accountability, so as to build public confidence in government’s ability to account for public resources in a transparent manner.
Yours sincerely

June Williams
Senior Manager: Western Cape
31 July 2013
Enquiries:
Shaffida Andrews
Telephone:
021 528 4114
Fax:
021 528 4200
Email:
shaffidad@agsa.co.za

SECTION 7: SUMMARY OF DETAILED AUDIT FINDINGS

	Page no.
	Finding


	Classification
	Rating
	Number of times reported in previous 3 years


	Status of implementation of previous year(s) recommendation



	
	
	Misstatements in financial statements 
	Misstatements in annual performance report
	Non-compliance with laws & regulations
	Internal control deficiency
	Service delivery
	Matters affecting the auditor’s report
	Other important matters
	Administrative matters
	
	

	
	Procurement and contract management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	43
	SCM policy
	
	
	X
	
	
	
	X
	
	3
	Not addressed

	29
	Competitive Bidding
	
	
	X
	
	
	X
	
	
	3
	Not addressed

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Report on predetermined objectives
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	23
	Inconsistency between planned targets/indicators and reported targets/indicators
	
	X
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	3
	Not addressed

	26
	Key Performance Indicators are not measurable and time bound
	
	X
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	2
	Not addressed

	40
	Reasons for variances between planned targets and reported targets were not disclosed
	
	X
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	2
	Not addressed

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Governance
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	35
	No internal audit
	
	
	X
	
	
	X
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pre paid assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	81
	Prepaid assets not recognised
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accruals
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	47
	Expense items due and not yet paid not accrued for at year end 
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commitments
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	54
	Commitments:  Operating lease commitments incorrectly calculated
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	56
	The gross minimum lease payments disclosed under finance lease differ from recalculated amount
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	HR matters
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	45
	Performance bonus
	
	
	X
	
	
	X
	
	
	2
	Not addressed

	48
	Human resource management
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	60
	Employee benefits disclosure - comparative amount disclosed in the Financial Statements does not agree with prior published Annual Financial Statement
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Property plant and equipment
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	37
	Accounting policy indicates incorrect useful lives and failure to derecognize EPO equipment  which is no longer in use
	X
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	
	

	66
	Computer equipment – tracking of the movement of individual assets


	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	72
	Incomplete Change in Estimate Note

	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Budget management controls
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	32
	Expenditure in excess of approved budget
	
	
	X
	
	
	X
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash flow statement
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	50
	Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement does not agree to the Trial Balance
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Expenditure
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	52
	Lease payments under operating lease not recognised on straight line basis
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	62
	Disclosure of the Lotto funding expenditure does not agree with the schedule sent to the National Lottery
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	70
	Expenditure: Lease hold expenditure incorrectly expensed
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	74
	Late payment of laboratory fees
	
	
	X
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	76
	Operating lease incentives not recognised
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Related party
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	58
	Related party: Disclosure in the financial statements is incomplete
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Inventory
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	64
	Forex: Incorrect transaction date used in the recording of foreign purchases
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	78
	Inventory: Difference between recalculated cost per unit and difference in DCO inventory count
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Intangible assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	68

	Intangible Assets: No disclosure for change in accounting estimate
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accounts receivable
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	83
	Differences between aging as per financial statements and aging as per accounting records
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	85
	Customers with credit balances at year end
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revenue
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	87
	Sales invoices translated at incorrect spot rates
	X
	
	
	
	
	
	X
	
	
	


\
DETAILED AUDIT FINDINGS

ANNEXURE A: MATTERS AFFECTING THE AUDITOR’S REPORT 

1. AOPO - Inconsistency between planned targets/indicators and reported targets/indicators

Audit finding

In accordance with Treasury regulation 30.1.3(g) - 

"The strategic plan must form the basis for the annual reports of accounting authorities in terms of section 55 of the PFMA."
The following indicators/targets reported in the Annual Performance Report for 2012/2013 and quarterly reports are not consistent with the planned indicators/targets in the Strategic Plan for 2012/2013:

 

	Program
	Planned indicators/measures (Strategic plan)
	Planned targets as contained in the strategic  plan
	Planned targets as contained in the annual performance report and quarterly reports
	Reported actual performance against targets

	Doping Control and Drug Testing
	• Implement one registered testing pool (RTP) that targets sport.
	150 Athletes
	150 Athletes
	RTP testing program – ongoing

	
	• One National drug testing program targeting sports and athletes which satisfy the SAIDS doping risk profile.
By 2010 SAIDS will average 2 500 tests per annum including urine and blood tests with a short term goal of achieving a minimum of 3 000 tests by 2014
	Minimum of 3 000 tests by 2014
	• National test program – 2300 tests for the year
o 150 EP tests
o 150 bloods
	• 2 280 tests
• 243 EPO tests
• 155 blood tests as part of ABP
• 56 Human Growth Hormone tests

	
	• Set-up of the Athlete Biological Passport (ABP) testing program by October 2010 and the implementation by January 2011.
	The strategic plan does not provide a set target for the number of athletes.
	Implementation of Athlete Biological Passport (ABP) program
o 50 athletes
	Athlete Biological Passport program
• 82 athletes

	
	• Updated doping control quality manual by June 2012 as per quality assurance certification (ISO9001).
	These KPI's do not appear on the annual performance report

	
	• To host and organize a national training seminar for doping control officers every other year.
	

	
	• All new accredited DCO's have completed a competency exam 
	

	
	• Host an information workshop to sports federations of their constitutional and operational rules and obligations at least once every 2 years. Priority is given to federations who fall in doping risk profile. 
2011 -2012
	

	
	• Perform one audit of constitutions identified in the doping risk profile of national sports federation at least once every 4 years starting in 2011: 2011-2012


	

	Education, research and outreach
	Complete draft framework that outlines operational and legal parameters of the schools program: 2012-2013 (related to above KPI
	These KPI's do not appear on the annual performance report

	Strategic alliances and partnerships 
	Implement pilot Programs at two schools yearly. 2012 – 2013 
	

	
	• Establish a working group drawn from law enforcement to develop an operational framework to implement an intelligence framework. 
2013 – 2014
	

	
	• Establish and foster a relationship with law enforcement in order to share information with law enforcement agencies and pursue non-analytical violations. 2011-2012
	


The following objectives reported in the Annual Performance Report and quarterly reports for 2012/2013 are not consistent with the planned objectives in the Strategic Plan 2012/2013:

  

	Program
	Planned objectives as per strategic plan
	Reported objectives as per annual/quarterly reports

	Intelligence Strategic Alliances and Partnerships
	Ensure that Doping Control and Drug Testing is underpinned by sound intelligence information
	There is no objective on the annual and quarterly performance report in this regard

	Costs
	Continually look to areas for process improvement to achieve cost efficiencies and better meet “customer” needs 
	There is no objective on the annual and quarterly performance report in this regard

	Compliance
	Ensure compliance to all regulatory and legislative requirements
	There is no objective on the annual and quarterly performance report in this regard

	Human Capital
	Strive to become a learning organization 
	There is no objective on the annual and quarterly performance report in this regard

	Information Capital
	Ensure a sound and robust IT platform 
	There is no objective on the annual and quarterly performance report in this regard


The entity did not prepare regular, accurate and complete annual and quarterly performance reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information.The performance reports was not timely reviewed for any inconsistency between the planning documents and the actual performance report and consequently complete and accurate performance were not achieved.

Recommendation

We recommend that management consider implementing the following:

· The targets and indicators reported in the annual and quarterly performance report should be amended so as to reflect those in the strategic planning document.

· Targets and indicators should be set before the start of the financial year and these should be reported against in the annual performance.

· Any changes in the planning documents should be approved by the board. 

Management comment on audit finding:

Noted

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

Noted

What actions will be taken

None noted

Name: Khalid Galant


Position: CEO

Date: 24 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management response is noted. The finding will remain as the targets reported in the Annual Performance Report for 2012/2013 are not consistent with the planned targets in the Strategic Plan for 2012/2013.  This is reported in the Performance report in the management report
2. AOPO - Key Performance Indicators are not measurable and time bound.

Audit finding

In terms of the National Treasury Regulations 5.2.2: 

“The strategic plan must: 

· include the measurable objectives, expected outcomes, programme outputs, indicators (measures) and targets of the institution’s programmes;"
In accordance with the National Treasury Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information chapter 3.3, page 10 “an indicator should be specific, measurable and time bound.”
"Measurable: the required performance can be measured”
"Time-bound: the time period or deadline for delivery is specified."
During our testing of performance information, it was identified that the following key performance indicators are not measurable and time bound:
	Program 
	Planned Indicator as per strategic plan
	Planned indicator as per annual report
	Reported results as per annual report
	Measurable
	Time bound

	Education, research and outreach
	• Establish alliances with organizations who have specialized skills for prioritised target groups
	• Establish alliances with organizations who have specialized skills for prioritised target groups
	• Establish working alliances with the following organisations to integrate “I Play Fair” campaign into event promotion:

o Momentum 94.7km Cycle Challenge

o 70.3 Ironman Triathlon

o Midmar Mile Swim
o Cape Argus Cycle Tour
	X
	X

	Education, research and outreach
	• Foster relationships with various media outlets to advance coherent anti-doping messages
	Foster relationships with various media outlets to advance coherent anti-doping messages
	• Continued and fostered working relationship with SRSA/Minister of Sport.  
• Of the total number of media releases issued during the year, two releases (George EPO case and Comrades Winner Charged with Doping) received extensive national and international coverage
	X
	X

	 
	Participate and contribute to forums/conferences to share and exchange best practices and to explore potential for joint venture projects
	Participate and contribute to forums/conferences to share and exchange best practices and to explore potential for joint venture projects
	• University of Witswatersrand hosted anti-doping legal forum.
• Formalised strategic alliance with the Sports Science Institute of SA by becoming a tenant in the Institute.
• Recommended to government the renewal of SA participation in the International Anti-Doping Agreement (IADA) and the Regional Anti-Doping Organization (RADO) Zone VI structure.
	X
	X

	Strategic alliances and partnerships 
	Optimise interaction and create leverage with Ministry of Sport/SRSA
	Optimise interaction and create leverage with Ministry of Sport/SRSA
	• Continued and fostered working relationship with SRSA/Minister of Sport.
	X
	X


Management does not ensure that key performance indicators are measurable and that a specific time period is reported on the annual performance report in terms of the National Treasury guidelines.

This may result in incomplete presentation and disclosure in the Annual Performance Report and Annual Report, as well as a lack of clarity to the users of the financial statements.

 Internal control deficiency

Pertinent information is not captured in a quantifiable form and time frame to support performance reporting. The entity may not be able to measure its performance against set targets as they appear not to be specific.

Recommendation

Management should ensure that key performance indicators are measurable and time bound as per the guidelines issued by National Treasury so that the nature and the required level of performance can be identified. 

Management comment on audit finding:

Disagree – The measurement of performance indicators from the strategic plan is contextually relevant to the nature of the work of the agency.  Indicators can be measured through different means not only via numerical quantity.  The indicators are measured through its strategic value to the agency and this value is reported in the performance report.  The strategic plan is applicable from 2010 -2014.  The performance report is time-bound to 2012/13.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Disagree

Management comment on recommendation:

Disagree

What actions will be taken:

None noted

Name: Khalid Galant

Position:  CEO

Date: 20 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management response is noted. It is suggested that the institute put in place a set of data definitions in order to guide the interpretation and measurement of targets.  This is reported in the management report in the performance audit report.
3. Supply Chain Management - Competitive Bidding

Audit finding
In terms of the PFMA section 51(1) (a) (iii) 

“An accounting authority for a public entity must ensure that the public entity has and maintains an appropriate procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective.”

According to Treasury Regulation (TR) 16A3.1

 “The accounting authority of an institution to which these regulations apply must develop and implement an effective and efficient supply chain management system in his or her institution for the acquisition of goods and services.”
According to TR 16A6.1 and TR16A6.4

“Procurement of goods and services, either by way of quotations or through a bidding process, must be within the threshold values as determined by the National Treasury.”
“If in a specific case it is impractical to invite competitive bids, the accounting authority may procure the required goods or services by other means, provided that the reasons for deviating from inviting competitive bids must be recorded and approved by the accounting authority.”
According to Practice Note 8 of 2007/08 paragraph 3.2,

“For transactions above the value of R2 000 but not exceeding R10 000, accounting authorities may procure requirements by obtaining at least three (3) verbal or written quotations from, where applicable, a list of prospective suppliers. The order should, however, be placed against written confirmation from the selected supplier if the quotation was submitted verbally."

And according to Practice Note 8 of 2007/08 paragraph 3.3.1,

"Above the transaction value of R10 000 but not exceeding R500 000 (VAT included) accounting authorities should invite and accept written price quotations for requirements up to an estimated value of R500 000 from as many suppliers as possible, that are registered on the list of prospective suppliers."

And according to Practice Note 8 of 2007/08 paragraph 3.3.3,

 "If it is not possible to obtain at least three (3) written price quotations, the reasons should be recorded and approved by the accounting authority or his / her delegate."
And according to Practice Note 7 of 2009/10 paragraph 4.1.2,

 “With effect from the date on which this practice note takes effect, accounting officers and accounting authorities are required to utilize the attached revised SBD 4 when inviting price quotations, advertised competitive bids, limited bids or proposals. This SBD 4 should be used with minimum changes that are necessary to address contract and project specific issues."

Whilst performing detailed testing of expenditure incurred by the entity we identified that the entity is in non-compliance with PFMA section 51(1)(a)(iii), (TR) 16A3.1, TR 16A6.1, TR16A6.4, Practice Note 8 of 2007/2008 paragraph 3.2,  paragraph 3.3.1, paragraph 3.3.3. 

Irregular expenditure may be understated by R 5 781 323.
Internal control deficiency

Leadership

Exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial reporting and compliance and related internal controls
 The accounting authority did not exercise oversight responsibility over compliance with laws and regulations by ensuring that a system is developed to ensure that non-compliance does not occur and consequently irregular expenditure was incurred.

Although a list was drawn up of reasons for using certain suppliers, approval of the list by the Board has not been seen.  In addition, no reference is made to these reasons when procurement is entered into which negates the value of the list and does not indicate that cognisance is taken of the need to comply with Treasury Regulations  and show approval of deviations from these regulations every time they occur.

Recommendation

We recommend that the accounting authority together with management consider implementing the following:

· A supply chain management unit should be established within the office of the chief financial officer to ensure compliance with treasury regulations considering that the entity’s total expenditure has increased from R17 139 000 to R18 412 000 during the current financial year
· The accounting authority should monitor the entity’s compliance with treasury regulations at least on a quarterly basis

· The entity should consider disclosing the irregular expenditure in the financial statements. 

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted. However, the detail behind the alleged irregular expenditure of R5,781,323 is required to determine the validity of the finding.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The purpose of the preferred supplier listing was to assist the limited procurement entity in complying with the applicable legislation. The understanding of developing the list was that it would contain suppliers that would fall under the category of procurement deviations. The procurement deviation would be in terms of the preferred supplier list. 

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation is noted, however 

· Budget limitations do not allow for the establishment of a supply chain management unit.

· Further analysis is required prior to disclosing the expenditure as irregular in the financial statements.

What actions will be taken:

AG to provide details 

Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 20 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
We have provided the analysis on 21 June 2013 to the CFO and CEO. No disclosure has been made to the financials. This amount is above materiality, if the amount is not disclosed or evidence provided that the supply chain regulations were completely adhered to it will result in a qualification of the audit report.

Updated auditor’s conclusion:
We were provided with additional information and eliminated items that were procured form suppliers on the approved preferred supplier listing and received proof of certain purchases that the client obtained quotes for, the irregular expenditure was then reduced to R 307 782. Inspected the adjustment was made in the updated financial statements.  This remains as non-compliance in the audit report.
4. Expenditure in excess of approved budget

Audit Finding

In terms of section 53(4) of the Public Finance Management Act “The accounting authority for such a public entity is responsible for ensuring that expenditure of that public entity is in accordance with the approved budget”
During the audit of the budgeted information it was noted that the entity overspent their budgeted expenditure as per the budget submitted to National Treasury. Management did not submit an adjusted budget and thereby did not obtain approval from National Treasury to incur such additional expenditure for the year under review. Please refer to table below for the calculation.

	Amount budgeted for expenditure
	R 15 876 000

	Amount actually expensed (less adjustment for depreciation and amortization)
	R 18 054 000

	Amount by which expenditure exceeds budget
	R   2 178 000


 The entity does not have systems in place to ensure that they do not overspend on the approved budget and obtain approval in advance should they foresee that the approved budget is inadequate.

Internal control deficiency

	     Financial and performance management

	
	

	Management did not implement systems which will allow them to determine whether the budget will be exceeded and thereby neglected to obtain approval for the expenditure incurred which was in excess of the approved budget. 

	


Recommendation

Management should monitor the budget more stringently and ensure that they apply for amendment of the approved budget before expenditure is incurred which is in excess of the approved budget.
Management response
	Management comment on audit finding

The entity did overspend its budget. The nature of the entities operations do not allow for control over certain aspects of the budget/forecast expenditure.

The main reason for the overrun in expenditure was the increased results management expenses that were incurred as a result of the handling of positive tests. When management became aware that there would be a shortfall in the allocated budget, a request was made the entity of Sports and Recreation to provide additional funding to alleviate the cash flow shortfall that had been predicted, We therefore disagree with the finding that management does not have systems in place to ensure that they do not overspend on the approved budget and obtain approval in advance should they foresee that the approved budget is inadequate

Management comment on internal control deficiencies

We disagree with the internal control deficiency as there are systems in place that did enable us to determine that there would be a shortfall in the budget.

Management comment on recommendation

Management does monitor the budget and did apply for additional funding. The amended budget cannot be submitted as the additional expenditure cannot be forecast ahead of time for the expenditure over which we have no control.




Name:
K Galant

Position: CEO 



Date: 27 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment noted. This is in contravention of section 53 (4) of the PFMA and will be reported in the auditor’s report.
Updated management response

Actual expenditure exceeded budgeted expenditure by R2,587k. The reasons for the budgeted expenditure having been exceeded are as follows:

· Increased Results Management as result of high profile athletes that tested positive, resulted in additional expense in this category (R1428k)

· Increased Lab Analysis costs due to increase and shift in focus in testing (R659k). This also resulted in increased Courier Cost (R365k) and DCO Remuneration (R614k)

· The Sports Law Project was launched due to the review of Doping Control Code. This was not budgeted for and resulted in unplanned spend of (R227k)

· The above was partially offset by increased doping control sales in excess of budget. 

Management actively monitors the operating activities of the entity and when it was apparent that expenditure would exceed the budget, a request was put forward to the Department of Sports and Recreation for additional funding. However, due to delays experienced at the department, the additional funding was only received after year end
Updated auditor’s response:
Management comment noted. However since this is non compliance with laws and regulations thus this finding will remain.
5. No internal audit function

Audit Finding

In terms of section 51(1) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act “

(1) An accounting authority for a public entity—

(a) must ensure that that public entity has and maintains—

(i) effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control;

(ii) a system of internal audit under the control and direction of an audit committee complying with and operating in accordance with regulations and instructions prescribed in terms of sections 76 and 77;”

During the year under review the entity had no internal audit function. The internal audit is outsourced and the contract expired without it being replaced.
 Internal control deficiency

	Governance



	The audit committee did not ensure that there is an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit that identifies internal control deficiencies and recommends corrective action effectively 




Recommendation

The accounting authority should ensure that an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit is in place at all times.  Since the internal audit function is contracted out it is important that the contract is monitored and a new procurement process entered to ensure timeous replacement.

Management response:

Management comment on audit finding

We disagree with the finding as an internal audit service provider was appointed during the year. Unfortunately, due to certain issues within the entity, the appointment took longer than initially anticipated.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The audit committee undertook to recommend the appointment of an internal audit service provider to the board. Unfortunately, this process took longer than anticipated. 

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation is noted; however, this is beyond the scope of management, as the audit committee reviews potential service providers and would make a recommendation to the board, who would ultimately appoint a service provider.

Remedial action: An internal audit service provider has been appointed by the board on 8 March 2013.

What actions will be taken:

Appoint internal audit service provider

By whom:

Board

By when:

8 March 2013

Name:
K Galant

Position: CEO 



Date: 14 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management comment noted. Management should build in sufficient time for the procurement process to ensure that they always have an internal audit function in place. Based on discussions held with the CFO and reading the audit committee minutes of 14 February 2013, we have confirmed that the entity did not have any internal audit function for the year under review. The new internal auditors will cover the new financial period and thus the accounting authority ensured that they will not have a repeat finding for the following year. This issue of non compliance will be reported in the management report as non compliance with laws and regulations.

6. Property Plant and Equipment - Accounting policy indicates incorrect useful lives and failure to derecognize EPO equipment which is no longer in use

Audit finding

According to the paragraph 82(c) of GRAP 17 – Property Plant and Equipment –“the financial statements shall disclose, for each class of property, plant and equipment recognised in the financial statements the useful lives or the depreciation rates used.”

Paragraph 72 (b) states “The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be derecognised: 
(b) when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.” 
Incorrect useful lives disclosed:

The following was found when the disclosure in the financial statements of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment (PPE) was audited:

a) EPO testing equipment

The useful life was changed from 8 to 11-13 years based on recalculation of management’s calculation; however note 1.4 discloses the useful life as being 8 years. 

The depreciation rates for disclosed in the accounting policy for PPE relating to EPO equipment are not adequately disclosed.

Assets not derecognised:

During the audit of Property Plant and Equipment it was found that two items of EPO equipment no longer in use by the entity were not derecognised

The effect on the financial statements is summarised below:

	Description
	Cost
	Accumulated Depreciation
	Carrying value

	Qtrap High performance bench top
	R1 598 248 
	                     R1 598 248 
	R1

	1 Nova Blot electrode
	R       5 992 
	                     R       5 992 
	R1

	Total
	R1 604 240 
	                     R1 604 240 
	R2


Both the cost and accumulated depreciation of EPO equipment are overstated by R1 604 240

Internal control deficiency

Management did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information. 

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2012 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the accounting policy note, resulting in an error in the useful lives of the PPE as disclosed.

Management did not review the fixed asset register and check that assets on the register are still in use. Management did not derecognize assets that have been identified as no longer being in use
Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed to identify any mistakes in the accounting policies disclosed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

Management should review the fixed asset register and check that assets on the register are still in use. PPE assets that are no longer in use should be identified and derecognized.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

Management is in agreement with the audit finding

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The deficiency stated above, “Management did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information” would do little to detect this finding.

“The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2012 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the accounting policy note, resulting in an error in the useful lives of the PPE as disclosed.’’ This deficiency is to be seen in the context that the confirmation from the lab was only received after the financials were submitted on 31 May 2013. Hence, this could not have been done prior to the submission.

Management did not review the fixed asset register and check that assets on the register are still in use. Management did not derecognize assets that have been identified as no longer being in use. – Management did review the fixed asset register, but the confirmation from the lab was only received after the financial statements were submitted.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year”, would also not be practical.
What actions will be taken:
Adjust financial statements

Dr Accum Deprn – EPO   1 604 240

            Cr EPO Equip – Cost              1 604 240
Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management response is noted. Financial Statements have been inspected and the adjustments noted by management have been inspected. The issue is resolved however this is a material adjustment to the financial statements and will be included in the management report and as non-compliance in the audit report due to the number of other items, which also were material in aggregate, requiring correction after audit.

ANNEXURE B: OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS 

7. AOPO - Reasons for variances between planned targets and reported targets were not disclosed

Audit finding

In accordance with the Treasury Regulation 28.2.2 -

"Particulars of the public entity’s strategic objectives and outcomes as identified and agreed on by the executive authority (strategic plan), the key performance measures and indicators for assessing the entity’s performance in delivering the desired outcomes and objectives and the entity’s actual performance against the strategic objectives and outcomes, must be disclosed in the annual report of the public entity."

During our audit work performed on performance information, it was identified that variances between planned targets (as per the Strategic Plan) and the reported targets (as per the Annual Performance Report) were not explained and disclosed in the Annual Performance Report. This relates to the following targets: 

	PLANNED PROGRAM
	PLANNED OBJECTIVE
	REPORTED INDICATORS
	PLANNED TARGETS
	REPORTED TARGETS (ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT)
	VARIANCE

	Doping Control and Drug Testing
	1. Manage and administer doping control services that are required in terms of international sport regulations
	• Implementation of RTP testing program (size of pool) 
o 150 athletes
	150 Athletes
	RTP testing program – ongoing
	Variance not quantifiable

	Education, research and outreach
	Provide anti-doping education to differentiated target audiences
	• Implement 5 anti-doping outreach projects, specific to adolescent and teen sports events
	• Implement 5 anti-doping outreach projects, specific to adolescent and teen sports events
	• Delivered 16 anti-doping outreach projects where approximately 10280 people interacted with outreach team and anti-doping information.
	220%

	 
	 
	• Establish at least 2 alliances with organizations who have specialized skills for prioritised target groups
	• Establish at least 2 alliances with organizations who have specialized skills for prioritised target groups
	• Establish working alliances with the following organisations to integrate “I Play Fair” campaign into event promotion:

o Momentum 94.7km Cycle Challenge

o 70.3 Ironman Triathlon

o Midmar Mile Swim
o Cape Argus Cycle Tour
	50%


The annual performance report is not consistent with the strategic planning documents and therefore accurate and complete performance reporting is not achieved.

 Internal control deficiency

The entity did not prepare regular, accurate and complete performance reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information. The performance report was not reviewed for any inconsistency between the Treasury Regulations, planning documents and the actual performance report.  

Recommendation

Management should ensure that all targets as set out in the strategic plan have been reported on, and where variances occur between the planned and reported targets these should be disclosed in the annual performance report and approved by the relevant accounting authority.
Management comment on audit finding:

Doping Control and Drug Testing – the indicator is outdated and only relevant to the first two years (2010/11) of the strategic plan.  The RTP program has been implemented and fully functional.  The number of athletes in the current RTP program has no significance.  The indicator will be amended in the next cycle of strategic plan drafting to better correlate with measuring the planned objective.

Implement 5 anti-doping outreach projects, specific to adolescent and teen sports events – the increase (variance) in outreach projects is attributed to additional funding from the Lottery.

• Establish at least 2 alliances with organizations who have specialized skills for prioritised target groups - the increase (variance) in alliances is attributed to the expansion of the education production precipitated by additional funding from the Lottery.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Variances were not considered significant to warrant special mention in the reports.

Management comment on recommendation:

Management reported on variances that were considered significant and where the variances had a financial effect.

What actions will be taken:

Variance will be acknowledged in annual report.

By whom:

Khalid Galant

By when:

June 2013

Name: K Galant


Position: CEO

Date: 20 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management response is noted. The finding will remain.  It is however possible that this can be cleared by the variances being explained in the performance report and the evidence for these explanations being provided to audit

Updated auditor’s conclusion

Management provided auditors with updated annual performance report and inspected and verified the reasons for variances for item 2 and 3. The reasons were found to be valid and reasonable.  The item has been left in the management report as a reminder for future years.

8. Supply chain management

Audit Finding

In terms of Treasury Regulation 16A9.1”The accounting officer or accounting authority must—
(c) check the National Treasury’s database prior to awarding any contract to ensure that no recommended bidder, nor any of its directors, are listed as companies or persons prohibited from doing business with the public sector;

(d) reject any bid from a supplier who fails to provide written proof from the South African Revenue Service that that supplier either has no outstanding tax obligations or has made arrangements to meet outstanding tax obligations;

(e) reject a proposal for the award of a contract if the recommended bidder has committed a corrupt or fraudulent act in competing for the particular contract;”

In terms of 16A8.2”The National Treasury’s Code of Conduct for Supply Chain Management Practitioners must be adhered to by all officials and other role players involved in supply chain management.

(d) must ensure that they do not compromise the credibility or integrity of the supply chain management system through the acceptance of gifts or hospitality or any other act;”

It was noted during our audit of supply chain management that the above stipulations were not addressed in the entity's Supply Chain Management Policy.

Internal control deficiency

Management did not review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The supply chain management policy was not drafted to be aligned to the stipulations contained in TR 16A9.1 (d) and TR 16A9.2 (a) which increases the risk of transactions not complying with the regulations.

Recommendation

We recommend that the accounting authority together with management implement the following:

· The entity’s current procurement policy should be updated to reflect the requirements of TR 16A9.1(d) and TR16A9.2(a) 

· Management should review the treasury regulations as published by the National Treasury to ensure that the public entity’s procurement policy is aligned to the requirements of the Treasury Regulations. 

Management comment on audit finding:

Where possible, the prescripts of Treasury Regulation 16A9.1 are complied with in the supply chain management system.

TR16A8.2 does not state: (d) must ensure that they do not compromise the credibility or integrity of the supply chain management system through the acceptance of gifts or hospitality or any other act;”

Management would appreciate if specific examples of non-compliance relating to the above extracts from the TR could be provided, so that responses can be related thereto. 

The entity is required to follow the prescripts of the Treasury Regulations, and where the supply chain policy is silent on certain items, the prescripts of the Treasury Regulations will apply.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Management is not aware of any instances of TR 16A9.2 (a) having not been complied with and would be appreciative if the AG could provide specific instances relating thereto.
Management comment on recommendation:

Management will review the current procurement policy to ensure alignment with Treasury Regulations. However, it must be noted that National Treasury is in the process of revising the treasury regulations and once this has been finalized, the review will be commenced.

What actions will be taken:

Current procurement policy will be reviewed to align with Treasury Regulations

By whom:

CFO

By when:

Publication of new Treasury Regulations

Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management response is noted. The finding will remain as the current procurement policy is not aligned to Treasury Regulation 16A9.1 (d) and Treasury Regulation 16A9.2 (a). No instances of non compliance were identified whilst testing. We will follow the progress with the development of the supply chain management policy in the quarterly key control visits in the coming year.
9. Performance bonuses <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TITLE"/> 

 </tm:format> 
Audit finding

The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999) (PFMA) prescribed the following in section 51(a) (i)

“General responsibilities of accounting authorities.—(1) An accounting authority for a

public entity—

(a) must ensure that that public entity has and maintains -

(i) effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control;”

 <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TEXTFIELD3"/> 

 </tm:format> During the audit of the employee costs it was noted performance bonuses were paid or accrued for the following management staff:

	Name of the employee
	 Performance bonus  amount 
	Amount paid to date  Rand
	Date of payment
	Amount raised as accruals

	Mr F Galant
	R25 484
	R25 484
	December 2012
	R26 584




The Board minutes for the financial year were inspected. No indication was found in the minutes that the performance bonuses were approved 

Internal control deficiency

Financial and performance management

The entity did not review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The entity may have awarded and paid performance bonuses without the approval of the accounting authority. <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TEXTFIELD6"/> 

 </tm:format> 
Recommendation

We recommend that all performance bonuses be approved before payment by the accounting authority after the assessment of the individual staff member’s performance against his/her individual performance contract. 

Management response

 <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TEXTFIELD2"/> 

 </tm:format> Management comment on audit finding:
Mr F Galant is part of operational staff.  His performances and any related incentives are reviewed and approved by the CEO not the Board.  The Board only reviews performance of the CEO.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Disagree

Management comment on recommendation:

Disagree

Remedial action:  

None
Name:
 Khalid Galant

Position:  CEO

Date: 20 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management comment noted. The documented reasoning behind the awarding of the performance bonus and the approval by the CEO before the loading of the EFT has not been seen.  It is accepted that the EFT release is approved by the CEO. Management should ensure that effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal control are maintained by the entity. It should also be noted that no employee has a signed performance agreement and thus the system of awarding performance bonuses is not transparent. <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="FOLLOWUP/NOTES"/> 

 </tm:format> 
10. Expense items due and not yet paid not accrued for at year end.
Audit finding

In terms paragraph 36 of GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements
“When the accrual basis of accounting is used, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, net assets, revenue and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those elements in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial “
During the audit of unrecorded liabilities, we identified that the following invoices were paid after year end but the goods were received or the services were rendered before year end. These items were however not included the list of accruals raised at year end.

	Supplier
	Invoice number
	Amount

	Rapid office solutions
	IN106526
	R  1 113

	Rapid office solutions
	IN106528
	R  3 026

	Bakubung Consulting CC
	SAIDS04
	R  6 360

	Total
	
	R 10 499


This results in an understatement of liabilities and expenses at year end.

Internal control deficiency

Management did not ensure that there are appropriate procedures in place to identify all possible accruals at year end.

Recommendation

Management should implement appropriate procedures that would ensure the all invoices that related to goods and services that were received or performed before year end is accrued for.

The list of expenses should be reviewed and evidence of review should be shown

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted. However, the invoice from Bakubung Consulting CC was only received after the AFS were submitted on 31 May 2013.
Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Management has procedures in place to account for accruals; however, these exceptions have been noted.
Management comment on recommendation:

Recommendation is noted

What actions will be taken:

Additional accruals will be raised

By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013
Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment is noted. Inspected updated financial statements and noted that the accruals balance was appropriately adjusted. This finding resulted in adjustments to the financial statements and thus would be included in the management report.
11. Human resource management

Audit Finding

Whilst performing the audit of human resource policies we have discovered that the entity does not have performance agreements in place. This could result in employees receiving performance bonuses which they did not earn and which were not approved in advance.

Employees should also know in advance how their performance will be measured and what their performance areas are.

Recommendation
Management should ensure that each employee signs a performance agreement at the start of each year; this will ensure that employees and management know what the criteria are when evaluating the awarding of performance bonuses.  <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TEXTFIELD1"/> 

 </tm:format> 
Management response

Performance agreements, we indicated that the employment contracts serve as the job spec and performance would be evaluated against this. Should you request a sample of these, we would be happy to furnish you with same.

Auditor’s conclusion
We are still waiting on information for the job specs for the operations manager.
12. Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement does not agree to the Trial Balance
Audit finding

According paragraph 18 GRAP 1 Para.18

 “Financial statements shall present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses set out in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.” 

During the audit of Cash Flow Statement, it was found that the cash and cash equivalents amount per the Trial balance (general ledger) do not agree to the amount on the Annual Financial Statements for Audit purposes.

 

	Description
	Amount

	General Ledger
	R 416 000

	Financial Statements
	R 414 000

	Difference
	R     2 000


This resulted in the disclosed amount being incorrect in the financial statements
Internal control deficiency

The entity did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information. The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the note.

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed to identify any expense items that are material so that their nature and amount can be disclosed separately.” Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.
Management comment on audit finding:

Management is in agreement with the audit finding. However, the finding is as a result of the fact that the financial statements are reported in thousands of rands and the accounting records are stated in rands. The difference has arisen as a result of rounding errors that occur as a result thereof. We do not deem a R2000 “error” caused as a result of rounding differences to result in the AFS not being fairly and faithfully presented 

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency stated above does not appear to accurately account for the finding. Preparing regular financial statements will not result in rounding errors not occurring.

Management comment on recommendation:

Due to personnel constraints, it is extremely difficult to produce financial statements by the end of April and to produce complete financial statements more regularly during the course of the year would also not be practical under the current entity structure.

Due to the immaterial nature of the finding the AFS will not be adjusted.

What actions will be taken:

None
Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments noted. It is important that there is consistency in financial statements and where the same item is referred to twice in the same set the rounding must be the same in both to ensure agreement.  It is requested that all items that are quoted more than once in the financial statements are in absolute agreement.
Generally rounding differences would be acceptable should they be less than one up or down.  More than this will result in errors being taken to our schedule of unadjusted misstatements as the error is above the trivial threshold in the audit.

Drafting monthly financials will decrease the number of errors discovered by the auditors in the financial statements.

Updated auditor’s conclusion:
Management provided audit with updated financial statements which contained the correct adjustment. 
13. Lease payments under operating lease not recognised on straight line basis

Audit finding

In terms of GRAP 1 Para.18

 “Financial statements shall present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses set out in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.” 

In terms of GRAP 13 Para. 40

“ Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of time pattern of users benefits

During the audit of rental expense it was discovered that lease payments under an operating lease were not recognised as an expense on a straight line basis as required by GRAP 13 Para. 40

Details of the rental agreement are provided below

	Details
	Monthly Payment
	

	1 June 2011 – 31 May 2012 
(12months)

	R 31 300
	R 375 600



	1 June 2012 – 31 May 2013
(12 months)

	R 33 830
	R 405 960

	Monthly straight lined expense
	
	R   32 565

	straight lined expense for 31 March 2013 Year end
	
	R 390 780 



	lease payments for 31 March 2013 year end
	
	R 400 900

	Difference
	
	R   10 120


The effect of the incorrect accounting treatment is that the deferred rental as recognised in provisions is overstated and that rental expenses are overstated by R10 120.





Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation. 

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

The lease was terminated early in an agreement with the landlord, hence, the adjustment required to the straight lining provision.
Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year”, would also not be practical.

What actions will be taken:

Further information required from the AG to determine whether an adjustment will be required.

By whom:

CFO/AG

By when:

18 June 2013
Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment is noted. During prior year the lease was straight lined and thus the effect of the straight lining adjustment should be reversed. Account 9230/000 is thus overstated. Management did not adjust financial statements; this amount will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.

Updated auditor’s conclusion:
Received updated financial statements and inspected that the correct adjustment were made in the financial statements. 
14. Commitments:  Operating lease commitments incorrectly calculated
Audit finding

According paragraph 18 GRAP 1 Para.18

 “Financial statements shall present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses set out in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.” 

During the audit of operating leases, it was found that the amount disclosed as minimum lease payments under the lease differ from the recalculated value

See differences below





	Description
	Financial statements
	Recalculated
	Difference

	Due within one year
	R 540 000
	R 591 702*
	- R 51 702 

	Due between one to five years
	R 180 000
	R 114 730 
	  R 65 270 


*Included in this amount is a commitment remaining under the previous lease that was cancelled late in the year. This amount (R18053.98) was paid in April 2013

Included in this amount are amounts payable under the lease for the premises currently occupied.  The monthly payments of R 57 365 (Vat Inc) is calculated from 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2014.

Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the note.

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed to identify calculation errors. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.
Management comment on audit finding:

Management is in agreement that the disclosure is may have been incorrectly calculated. However, management does not agree with the figures calculated by the AG. 

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

Producing complete financial statements regularly during the year will not result in this misstatement being detected as the figure is based on calculations at the year end.

The error has been investigated.

What actions will be taken:

Disclosure will be amended

By whom:

Note specified

By when:

Note specified

Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 20 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment is noted. Management has not provided any evidence that suggests that the calculation is incorrect. As no adjustment was made this misstatement will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.
Updated auditor’s response:

Received updated financial statements and inspected that the correct adjustment were made in the financial statements
15. The gross minimum lease payments disclosed under finance lease differ from recalculated amount

Audit finding

According paragraph 18 GRAP 1 Para.18

 “Financial statements shall present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses set out in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.” 

During the audit of finance leases, it was found that the amount disclosed as gross minimum lease payments under the finance lease differs to the audited value. We performed a recalculation based on the contract rates contained in the contracts.

	Details
	Amount

	Amount disclosed per annual financial statements
	          R 35 000

	Audited value
	          R 37 204

	Difference
	          R   2 204


Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the note.

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed to identify any expense items that are material so that their nature and amount can be disclosed separately.” Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The deficiency is noted.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year”, would also not be practical.

What actions will be taken:

Disclosure will be adjusted

By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013

Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment is noted. As no adjustment was made this misstatement will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.
Updated auditor’s conclusion
Received updated financial statements and inspected that the correct adjustment were made in the financial statements
16. Related party: Disclosure in the financial statements is incomplete
Audit finding

Para 34 of IPSAS 20, Key Management Personnel states that 

“… the entity shall disclose

(a) The aggregate remuneration of key management personnel and the number of individuals, determined on a full time equivalent basis, receiving remuneration within this category, showing

Separately major classes of key management personnel and including a description of each class

(b) The total amount of all other remuneration and compensation provided to key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, by the reporting entity during the reporting period showing separately the aggregate amounts provided to:

(i) Key management personnel; and”

During the audit of related parties it was identified that CEO K Galant's (Key management) remuneration for the year was not included in the related party transaction disclosure in the current period.
Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation. 

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management response

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted. 

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency is noted.
Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year”, would also not be practical.

What actions will be taken:

Disclosure will be adjusted in AFS
By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013
Name:
 K Galant
Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment noted. Inspected the related parties note in the financial statements and determined that the note was correctly updated.
17. Employee benefits disclosure - comparative amount disclosed in the Financial Statements does not agree with prior published Annual Financial Statement

Audit Finding

According GRAP 1 Para.18 Financial statements shall present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses set out in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.

.During the audit of Employee Benefits note 11 in annual financial statements, it was found that the amounts disclosed do not agree to supporting documents provided by the client.

	Disclosure
	Current year
	Supporting documents
	Difference

	Defined contribution plan
	R 84 000
	R 134 436
	-R 50 436

	Medical Aid
	R 61,000.0
	R 76,050
	-R 15 050

	Disclosure
	Current year financials
	Prior year annual financial statements
	Difference

	Defined contribution plan
	R 115,000.0
	R 115,560.0
	-R 560.0

	Medical Aid
	R 67,000.0
	R 61,000.0
	R 6,000.0


 Inadequate review of financial statements to ensure accuracy of the disclosure notes in line with General Recognized Accounting Practice (GRAP)

Internal control deficiency

Financial and performance management
Accounting authority did not exercise oversight to ensure that current and comparative amounts disclosed are accurate

Recommendation

The employee benefits note should be corrected to reflect the correct information.  Financial statements should be completed in advance of the deadline and submitted to the accounting authority and audit committee for a thorough review to reveal the errors in the disclosure notes
	Management response

Management comment on audit finding

The finding is noted

Management comment on internal control deficiencies

Noted

Management comment on recommendation

Recommendation will be implemented

Remedial action:

What actions will be taken

Disclosure note will be adjusted in the AFS

By whom

CFO

By when

20 June 2013



Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 20 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management response is noted. Inspected updated financial statements and noted that employee benefit note was appropriately adjusted. This finding resulted in adjustments to the financial statements and thus would be included in the management report.

18. Disclosure of the Lotto funding expenditure does not agree with the schedule sent to the National Lottery
Audit finding

Expenditure on which Lotto funding income is utilised must be identified and disclosed in the financial statements, and income can only be recognised to the extent that expenditure is incurred. According to a contract with the National Lottery the grant may only be used for certain types of expenditure.

The amount disclosed in the financial statements is not consistent with the schedules and evidence provided to the National Lottery (for period March 2012 to December 2012):

	Description
	Annual Financial statements
	Schedule sent to National Lottery

	Access to info (Anti Doping Info Kiosk/Booths & Brochures)
	R 371 000
	R   47 639

	Anti-Doping Education (Provincial/National coaches)
	R 108 000
	R 206 839

	National Schools Outreach Program
	R 313 450
	R 527 102

	Real Winner Anti-Doping Interactive Program
	-
	R   48 160

	Difference
	R 792 450
	R 829 739


Based on the testing that that was performed on Lotto funding expenditure, what is disclosed on the financial statements is understated by R 37 289.

Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation. 

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency is noted

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.” would also not be practical.
What actions will be taken:

The disclosure will be adjusted
By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013
Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment noted. Inspected updated financial statements and noted that note 23 National Lottery Funding was appropriately adjusted. This finding resulted in adjustments to the financial statements and thus would be included in the management report.
19. Forex: Incorrect transaction date used in the recording of foreign purchases.
Audit finding

In terms of GRAP 4 Para.22

	“A foreign currency transaction shall be recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.”

In terms of GRAP 4 Para.23

“The date of a transaction is the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition in accordance with the Standards of GRAP.”


During the audit of all foreign purchases it was found that different dates were used when recording the initial cost of inventory and recording of expenses.

Purchases from Berlinger Special: According to the agreement, the shipping terms used are CFR (of which the risks and rewards of ownership transfer at arrival of the shipment in a port of South Africa).Other foreign purchases: all other expenses should be recorded at either the date the risks and rewards of ownership transfer for products, or at invoice date (date becomes liable for payment). The total foreign exchange differences amounts to R7 040.

 

	Invoice
	Inv. Amt.
	Transact. Date [Date entered S.A.]
	Exch. Rate (Oanda)
	Recalculated amount
	General ledger mount
	Difference

	SJAPR40
	€2,991.60
	4/21/2012
	10
	            R  30 829 
	   R   30 638 
	 -R   191

	SJJUN38
	€37,413.40
	6/29/2012
	10
	            R 392 265 
	  R 394 906 
	  R 2 641 

	SJJUN37
	€4,558.
	6/8/2013
	10
	            R   47 580 
	  R    48 575 
	  R    995 


	PN100061&62
	€3,179.50
	3/9/2013
	12
	           R  37 872 
	  R   38 613 
	  R    741 

	PN100059
	€ 219.00
	4/4/2012
	10
	           R   2 237 
	  R     2 368 
	  R    132 

	PN100060
	€ 358.00
	11/9/2012
	11
	           R   3 959 
	   R    4 090 
	  R    131 

	PN100058
	€ 378.00
	1/27/2013
	12
	           R   4 547 
	   R    4 582 
	   R     35 

	PN100063
	€ 9,195.00
	2/20/2013
	12
	           R 109 127 
	   R111 500 
	   R  2 373 

	31070003
	$4,600.00
	6/18/2012
	8
	           R  38 186 
	   R  38,392 
	   R     206 

	20120007
	$600.00
	12/10/2012
	9
	           R    5 200 
	    R   5,178 
	  - R      23


 The foreign exchange differences are incorrectly recorded in purchases account and not recorded in the profit and loss on foreign purchases account.

Internal control deficiency

There is no formal policy and procedures of which document should reflect the transaction date used for each transaction. 

Recommendation

Formal procedures should be set out and agreed that a single document will be used as a source of the transaction date, and this should be applied for all purchases in the same category

Management comment on audit finding:

Management acknowledges and agrees with the audit finding.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency is noted.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation is noted.

What actions will be taken:

Management will set procedures in place to determine the transaction date for foreign purchases

By whom:

CFO

By when:

June 2013

Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 20 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment noted. As no adjustment was made this misstatement will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.  All misstatements will be assessed in terms of materiality to determine the effect on the opinion on the financial statements.

20. Computer equipment – tracking of the movement of individual assets

Audit Finding

In terms of Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999) (PFMA), section 51 (1) (c)

"An accounting authority for a public entity- 

(c) is responsible for the management, including the safe-guarding, of the assets and for the management of the revenue, expenditure and liabilities of the public entity."
Contrary to the requirements of the PFMA, section 51(1) (c), documentation to prove that the custodian of the following item of computer equipment signed for the applicable asset, when it was issued, was not made available for auditing:

 <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TEXTFIELD3"/> 

 </tm:format> 
	Purchase Date

(per asset register)
	Item description
	Asset number
	Cost per Asset Register
	Accumulated Depreciation per Asset Register
	Book value recalculated by audit

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	28 Feb 2003
	Sony VPL C55 Data Projector
	240
	R28 498          


	R28 497 
	1


Assets transferred to another location or person is not supported by an asset transfer form or an acknowledgement of receipt.

In the absence of any acknowledge of receipts or transfer forms, the entity might be at risk of suffering financial losses when assets go missing and the management might not be able to hold anybody accountable when it does happen.

A similar issue has been reported in the 2011/12 financial year and management has not implemented any of the auditor’s recommendations.

 <tm:format font-override="true"> 

 <xsl:value-of select="TEXTFIELD4"/> 

 </tm:format> 
Internal control deficiency

Financial and performance management

The entity did not implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible and available to support the safeguarding of its assets. 

The internal control system as implemented does not provide sufficiently for the allocation of accountability of assets to specific custodians. 

This has resulted in the entity not being able to provide the auditors with documentation confirming that the individual staff members concerned can be held accountable for the safeguarding of the assets. 

Recommendation

The internal control system should be improved by ensuring that staff members sign for all assets which they take into their possession, and again that the relinquishing of that possession is recorded as well. This will at all times ensure that the person accountable for the safeguarding of the asset can be identified and will ease the tracking of individual assets when required.

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted.
Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Management is acutely aware of which employees are in custody of the entities assets. Confirmation of the custody of assets could have been received from the individuals concerned.

Management comment on recommendation:

Safeguarding of assets is done via insurance policies covering assets. Management only grants custody of assets to responsible employees/personnel. Management will be able to account at all times for the custody of assets.

An asset custody register is maintained, but it is not always possible to complete the register.

What actions will be taken:

Asset custody register will be updated.

By whom:

Accountant

By when:

21 June 2013

Name: K Galant


Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management comment noted. Management should however ensure staff signs for the asset in a register or a transfer document to ensure adequate record keeping of assets. Management should also ensure they obtain confirmation from staff whilst preparing financials to ensure that the correct amounts are included in assets and losses are identified timeously. 

Management has still not produced any evidence regarding the location and condition of the asset listed above.  If this is not provided it will be necessary to indicate the cost on the unadjusted schedule as an overstatement of assets as the existence of the asset is not proven. </xsl:for-each> 
21. Intangible Assets: No disclosure for change in accounting estimate
Audit finding

 According paragraph 41-42 GRAP 3

An entity shall disclose the nature and amount of a change in accounting estimate that has an effect in the current period or expected to have an effect in future periods, except for the disclosure of the effect on future periods when it is impracticable to estimate that effect.

If the amount of the effect in future periods is not disclosed because estimating it is impracticable, an entity shall disclose the fact.

Whilst inspecting note 22: Change in Accounting Estimates the following deviations from GRAP 3 paragraph were noted:

Based on work performed management reassessed the useful lives of interactive media applications as it was ascertained that the 2 applications on the Apple App store and Blackberry market will no longer be used and a new HTML 5 application will be developed for use on all smart devices. This new application will however only be available after July 2013.

Thus the accounting policy note for intangible assets and the change in accounting estimate note are both incomplete. 

Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation. 

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

The audit finding is noted.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency is noted.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year”, would also not be practical, as these are yearend functions that would not be able to be identified.

What actions will be taken:

Disclosure will be adjusted

By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013

Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment noted. As the adjustment was not appropriately made this misstatement will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.
Updated auditor’s response
Inspected updated financial statements and noted that employee benefit note was appropriately adjusted
22. Expenditure: Lease hold expenditure incorrectly expensed

In terms of paragraph 7, GRAP 17

	“The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if: 
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity, and 
(b) the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably “



During the audit of repairs and maintenance expense it was discovered that leasehold improvements that met the recognition criteria of an asset were incorrectly expensed. The following journal was inspected:

Details of lease 

	Date
	Account
	Entry Type
	Reference
	Description
	Amount

	28/02/13
	Repairs and Maintenance
	General Journal
	JMAR518
	Reall of Werth constr-new office ren
	R 42 653 


Included in this amount expensed is:

The installation of aluminium & glass and new partitioning to enlarge office to the amount of R24 584

The leasehold improvements should have been capitalised and amortised over the lease term of 16 months (1 year plus 4 months free rent)

Therefore the effect of the incorrect accounting treatment is that leasehold improvements (non-current assets) are understated by R 24 584

The related accumulated depreciation is understated by R 3 198

Repairs and Maintenance expenses are overstated by R24 584

Internal control deficiency

Management did not ensure that lease hold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over the lease period.

Recommendation

Management should review repairs and maintenance expenses and ensure that assets are not incorrectly expensed in this account.

Management comment on audit finding:

	GRAP 17 paragraph 13 states that: “This Standard does not prescribe the unit of measure for recognition, i.e. what constitutes an item of property, plant and equipment. Thus, judgment is required in applying the recognition criteria to an entity’s specific circumstances”

In this instance, the judgment of management was that the expense does not meet the definition of the asset in the entity’s specific circumstances.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

Management did review the repairs and maintenance expense to determine if any expenses were incorrectly allocated to the account.
What actions will be taken:

None
	. 


Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 20 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment is noted. The improvements done to the section which is now being occupied by the entity does however meet the definition of an asset as it can be measured and the entity is using the office space which means it is probable that they can measure the service potential of the improvements. This matter is thus unresolved and will be reported in the management report. As no adjustment was made this misstatement will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.

23. Property plant and equipment - Incomplete Change in Estimate Note
Audit finding

According paragraph 41-42 GRAP 3

An entity shall disclose the nature and amount of a change in accounting estimate that has an effect in the current period or expected to have an effect in future periods, except for the disclosure of the effect on future periods when it is impracticable to estimate that effect.

If the amount of the effect in future periods is not disclosed because estimating it is impracticable, an entity shall disclose the fact.

Whilst inspecting note 22: Change in Accounting Estimates the following deviations from GRAP 3 paragraph were noted:

Motor Vehicles

The useful life and residual value of a refurbishment of a motor vehicle was revised during the current year. The effect of the change in estimate on the future periods was not provided for in the note.

EPO Equipment

The useful life of EPO Equipment was revised at the end of the current year. The effect of this change in estimate related to the Equipment has not been disclosed.

Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the note.

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The omission should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

Management is in agreement with the audit finding
Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency is noted.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year”, would also not be practical.

The recommendation is noted.
Remedial action: 

The notes to financial statements will be adjusted accordingly.
Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion

Management comment noted. As the adjustment was not appropriately made this misstatement will be carried forward to the statement of uncorrected misstatements.
Updated auditor’s response

Inspected updated financial statements and noted that change in accounting policy note was appropriately adjusted
24. Late payment of laboratory fees

Audit Finding

In terms of section 51(1) (b) of the Public Finance Management Act “(1) an accounting authority for a public entity—

(b) must take effective and appropriate steps to—

(i) collect all revenue due to the public entity concerned; and

(ii) prevent irregular expenditure, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, losses resulting from criminal conduct, and expenditure not complying with the operational policies of the public entity”

During the audit of expenditure it was noted that Clause 10 in the contract between the University of Free State (the lab) and the entity states that the invoices should be paid within 90 days of receipt of the invoice. 

As the date of receipt of invoice is not clear (i.e. no stamp), receipt of invoice is presumed to be 15 August 2012

	Account
	Description
	Amount
	Payment date

	Lab fees
	Period 1 April 2012 - 30 June 2012
	R1 289 743
	02 January 2013


 The entity does not have systems in place to ensure that invoices are paid within the specified time as invoices are not stamped on date of receipt thus we are unable to conclude what date this invoice was received.

Internal control deficiency

	Financial and performance management

	
	

	Management did not implement systems which will allow them to determine the actual date of receipt of the invoice to ensure payment occurs on a timely manner and thereby ensuring that no irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is incurred.



	


Recommendation

Implement systems which will allow management to determine the actual date of receipt of the invoice to ensure payment occurs on a timely manner and thereby ensuring that no irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is incurred.

Management comment on audit finding:

Management is aware of specified times in which invoices are required to be paid.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The deficiency below is noted, but we are at a miss as to how the potential late payment could result in the expense being classified as irregular and fruitless and wasteful.

Management did not implement systems which will allow them to determine the actual date of receipt of the invoice to ensure payment occurs on a timely manner and thereby ensuring that no irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is incurred.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation is noted, but management is not of the opinion that late payment could result the expense being classified as irregular and fruitless and wasteful.

What actions will be taken:

AG to provide clarity on why expenditure will be classified as irregular and fruitless and wasteful.

By whom:

Auditor General
By when:
Not specified

Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013

Auditor’s conclusion

Management response is noted. Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure can be incurred if interest and penalties is charged on the late payment. This will be included in other important matters in the management report. 

25. Expenditure: Operating lease incentives incorrectly accounted for
 Audit Finding

In terms of paragraph 25, GRAP 13

“All incentives for the agreement of a new operating lease shall be recognised as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or timing of payments “
During the audit of operating lease payments, we found that the entity provided the current office space for month’s rent free. The 4 months rent free incentive was however not accounted for in terms of the above mentioned GRAP statement.

Details of lease 

	Period of lease (Including the 4 months rent free)
	16

	Monthly Rental payable (Vat inclusive)
	R   57 365

	Total rental payable
	R 688 378

	Monthly straight lined expense
	R   43 024

	To be recognised in 2013 (i.e. 2 months)
	R   86 047


Therefore the effect of the incorrectly accounting treatment is that rental expense has been understated by R86 047 and deferred rental (provisions) have been understated by R86 047 

Internal control deficiency

Management did not ensure that operating lease incentives are accounted for correctly.

Recommendation

Management should review all operating lease and account for any lease incentives in terms of GRAP 13
Management comment on audit finding:

The finding states that the 4 months free rental incentive was not accounted for. We disagree with this, as only two months required to be accounted for in the current year.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation is noted and will be implemented.

What actions will be taken:

The adjustment will be processed.

DR Rental paid        86047.20

Cr    Rental Accrual            86047.20

By whom:

Not specified

By when:

Not specified

Name:


Position:  



Date:
Auditor’s conclusion
Management response is noted. Inspected updated financial statements and noted that both the rental paid and provisions were appropriately adjusted. This finding resulted in adjustments to the financial statements and thus would be included in the management report.

26. Inventory: Difference between recalculated cost per unit and difference in DCO inventory count. 
Audit finding

The following differences were identified:

	Inventory items
	Cost as per client
	Recalculated cost.
	Difference.

	Urine (11/06/2012)
	150
	163
	- R 15 860 

	Blood HGH (11/06/2012)
	180
	181
	- R      120 

	Blood HGH (20/04/2012)
	226
	211
	R      517 

	Blood ABP (07/03/2013)
	151
	149
	 R     740 

	Blood ABP (11/06/2012)
	121
	134
	- R  1 563 

	Total
	 
	 
	- R 16 286 


	Inventory items
	Units as per schedule
	Units added up from DCO certificate
	

	Urine
	385
	411
	-R 4 233

	Blood HGH
	26
	29
	-R    634

	Blood ABP
	92
	91
	R    133

	Total
	
	
	-R 4 734


Total difference in stock: R21 020 understated

This resulted in the disclosed amount being incorrect in the financial statements

Internal control deficiency

Management did not ensure that the separate DCO certificates agrees with their listings before the amounts were calculated for the financials

The yearend inventory cost per unit is incorrect due to foreign exchange difference which is as a result of translating foreign purchases on the incorrect date.

Recommendation

A second individual should review the amounts recorded as held by each DCO and sign the report as reviewed.

Formal procedures should be set out and agreed that a single document will be used as a source of the transaction date to record the correct cost. All costs relating to bringing the inventory to the place and condition in which it is ready to be used as intended by management should be included in the per unit cost recorded at year end.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

Management has reviewed the finding, as well as the workings supplied by the AG, but cannot determine the underlying cause of the differences noted for costs. 

The DCO stock differences have been noted and are accepted.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The control deficiency relating to DCO stock has been noted.

The control deficiency relating to yearend inventory cost per unit requires more clarity from the AG to determine the underlying cause.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation regarding the DCO stock has been noted and will be implemented.

The recommendation regarding the inventory costing requires some clarity from the AG as all costs relating to the bringing of the inventory to the place and condition in which it is ready to be used as intended are taken into account.

What actions will be taken:

Once clarity has been obtained from the AG, a decision will be taken on whether the AFS will be adjusted.

By whom:

AG

By when:

Not specified

Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comment noted. The underlying causes for the stock difference is management transferred the incorrect totals for DCO stock to their workings and purchases were not recognised on the correct date. Workings were provided to the CFO. The only adjustment made by management is R3 415, thus the balance will be included on the schedule of uncorrected misstatements.

Updated Auditor’s response
Inspected supporting documents and management calculation and re performed calculations. Management made correct adjustment thus no further adjustment is required. 
27. Prepaid assets not recognised
Audit finding

According paragraph 18 GRAP 1 Para.18

 “Financial statements shall present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity. Fair presentation requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses set out in the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.” 

During the audit of insurance expenses, it was found that the premium for the full year (1 December 2012- 30 November 2013) was paid which amounted to R102 190. The prepaid amount would thus be calculated from April 2013 to November 2013; this would result in a prepaid asset being recognised in the accounting records. The full amount was however incorrectly expensed.

The effect of the incorrect accounting treatment is that expenses have been overstated by R68127 and assets understated by R68 127.

 
Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the note.
Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.
Management comment on audit finding:

Management is in agreement with the finding.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Management does not understand the context of the deficiency and which “misrepresentation in the note” that is being referred to.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.” would also not be practical.
The error has been investigated and the financial statements will be adjusted accordingly.
Remedial action: 

Adjust annual financial statements
Dr Prepaid Expenses   68127

Cr Insurance                          68127
Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management response is noted. Inspected updated financial statements and noted that insurance (malpractice) was appropriately adjusted. This finding resulted in adjustments to the financial statements and thus would be included in the management report and as non-compliance in the audit report.

28. Trade and Other Receivables: Differences between aging as per financial statements and aging as per accounting records.
Audit finding

According to the paragraph 37 of IFRS 7, Financial Instruments – Disclosures on credit risk:

“An entity shall disclose by class of financial assets:

1. (a)  an analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due as at the end of the reporting period but not impaired; 
2. (b)  ……….. 
3. (c)  for the amounts disclosed in (a) and (b), a description of collateral held by the entity as security and other credit enhancements and, unless impracticable, an estimate of their fair value.” 
The following difference was found in the disclosure of receivables in the notes to the financial statements:

	Trade receivables analysis
	Financial statements
	Age analysis
	Difference

	0 – 30 days
	R 608,000
	R 607 721
	R       279

	30 – 60 days
	-
	-
	-

	60 – 120 days
	R 225,000
	R 281,715
	-R 56 715

	Over 120 days
	R 280,000
	R 223 561
	R 56,439

	Total
	
	
	R         0-


Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation in the note.

Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed to identify any expense items that are material so that their nature and amount can be disclosed separately.” Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management response

Management comment on audit finding:

The finding is noted

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.” would also not be practical.
What actions will be taken:

Note will be adjusted

By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013
Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO



Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments noted. The adjustment was made in the financial statements. This issue is thus resolved but included due to the adjustment made. 

29. Customers with credit balances at year end
Audit finding

In terms of paragraph 39 of GRAP

	“Assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses, shall not be offset unless required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP. “


During the audit of trade receivables, customers with amounts in credit were found.

	Customer
	Amount

	MAA03 - Mauritius Ministry of Youth & Sports
	     -R        686

	NNOC01 - Namibian National Olympic Committee
	  -R        152

	NAT001 - Nigeria Sports Commission
	   -R   20 037

	FMSS01 - Nigerian Federal Ministry of Sports and
	     -R       833

	Total
	-R  26,708


These amounts should be reclassified to creditors

Internal control deficiency

The review of the financial statements prior to submission on 31 May 2013 was insufficient to identify the misrepresentation. 
Recommendation

Management should produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed. Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted. Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding:

The finding is noted

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

The internal control deficiency is noted.

Management comment on recommendation:

The recommendation to “produce draft financial statements annually by the end of April so that a detailed review can be performed” is not possible given the current organizational structure of the entity. The recommendation that “Complete financial statements should preferably be produced more regularly during the course of the year.” would also not be practical.
What actions will be taken:

AFS will be adjusted.
By whom:

CFO

By when:

18 June 2013

Dr Accounts Receivable        26,708
Cr Accounts payable               26,708
Name:
K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 14 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Management comments noted. Inspected updated financial statements and noted that accounts receivable and sundry payables were appropriately adjusted. This finding resulted in adjustments to the financial statements and thus would be included in the management report. 

30. Revenue: Sales invoices translated at incorrect spot rates.

 In terms of paragraph 42, GRAP 4

	“The financial performance and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is not the currency of a hyperinflationary economy shall be translated into a different presentation currency using the following procedures: 

(a) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented (i.e. including comparatives) shall be translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position. 
(b) Revenue and expenses for each statement of financial performance (i.e. including comparatives) shall be translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. “


During the audit of foreign revenue, it was discovered that the invoices were translated using the incorrect date and thus the incorrect spot rate. The following invoices were tested: 

	Transaction date
	Invoice
	Amount per General ledger
	Spot rate
	Foreign amount
	Recalculate amount 
	Difference

	24/08/12
	IN100583
	 R 162 549 
	R 9
	19 684
	 R 167 885 
	 R   -5 336 

	04/09/12
	IN100586
	 R   16 167 
	R 8
	1 923
	 R    15 137 
	 R     1 031 

	04/09/12
	IN100587
	 R   10 896 
	R 8
	1 296
	 R    10 427 
	 R        469 

	05/09/12
	IN100594
	 R   27 138 
	R 8
	3 242
	 R    25 400 
	 R     1 738 

	05/09/12
	IN100595
	 R   34 320 
	R 8
	4 100
	 R    34 194 
	 R        126 

	17/09/12
	IN100599
	 R     7 964 
	R 8
	 971
	 R      7 878 
	 R          85 

	10/10/12
	IN100603
	 R         793 
	R 8
	 90
	 R         700 
	 R          93 

	10/10/12
	IN100604
	 R   12 604 
	R 8
	1 430
	 R    11 978 
	 R        625 

	10/10/12
	IN100605
	 R     4 627 
	R 8
	 525
	 R      4 383 
	 R        244 

	10/10/12
	IN100606
	 R         555 
	R 8
	 63
	 R         526 
	 R          29 

	10/10/12
	IN100609
	 R   23 136 
	R 8
	2 625
	 R    21 709 
	 R     1 427 

	10/10/12
	IN100612
	 R   16 676 
	R 8
	1 892
	 R    15 512 
	 R     1 163 

	10/10/12
	IN100613
	 R     9 827 
	R 8
	1 115
	 R      9 283 
	 R        544 

	10/10/12
	IN100615
	 R         767 
	R 8
	 87
	 R         724 
	 R          42 

	10/10/12
	IN100616
	 R     3 217 
	R 8
	 365
	 R      3 016 
	 R        201 

	02/11/12
	IN100625
	 R     7 019 
	R 8
	 800
	 R      6 628 
	 R        391 

	15/11/12
	IN100635
	 R     6 799 
	R 9
	 771
	 R      6 753 
	 R          46 

	12/12/12
	IN100652
	 R   21 842 
	R 9
	2 520
	 R    22 356 
	 R      - 514 

	12/12/12
	IN100653
	 R     3 822 
	R 9
	 441
	 R      3 946 
	 R      - 124 

	14/12/12
	IN100658
	 R   13 425 
	R 9
	1 552
	 R    13 769 
	 R      - 344 

	19/03/13
	IN100667
	 R   13 148 
	R 9
	2 830
	 R    24 958 
	 R -11 810 

	19/03/13
	IN100668
	 R   13 148 
	R 9
	2 830
	 R    24 119 
	 R -10 971 

	19/03/13
	IN100669
	 R   17 469 
	R 9
	1 900
	 R    16 193 
	 R     1 277 

	31/03/13
	IN100671
	 R   12 350 
	R 9
	1 341
	 R    11 725 
	 R        625 

	31/03/13
	IN100672
	 R   26 063 
	R 9
	2 830
	 R    24 868 
	 R     1 195 

	31/03/13
	IN100673
	 R   29 176 
	R 9
	3 168
	 R    27 699 
	 R     1 477 

	31/03/13
	IN100677
	 R   29 587 
	R 9
	3 193
	 R    28 240 
	 R     1 347 

	31/03/13
	IN100679
	 R   13 251 
	R 9
	1 430
	 R    13 148 
	 R        103 

	31/03/13
	IN100682
	 R   13 251 
	R 9
	1 430
	 R    12 708 
	 R        543 

	31/03/13
	IN100693
	 R   12 426 
	R 9
	1 341
	 R    12 137 
	 R        289 

	31/03/13
	IN100696
	 R   13 251 
	R 9
	1 430
	 R    12 945 
	 R        306 

	07/04/12
	IN100555
	 R 118 614 
	R 8
	15 280
	 R 119 763 
	 R   -1 149 

	24/08/12
	IN100554
	 R     5 931 
	R 8
	 764
	 R      6 309 
	 R      - 378 

	07/04/12
	IN100556
	 R     7 825 
	R 8
	1 008
	 R      7 901 
	 R        - 76 

	17/05/12
	IN100558
	 R   10 338 
	R 8
	1 337
	 R    11 125 
	 R      - 787 

	17/05/12
	IN100558
	 R   10 338 
	R 8
	1 337
	 R    11 125 
	 R      - 787 

	07/09/12
	IN100564
	 R     1 180 
	R 8
	 141
	 R      1 149 
	 R          31 

	18/06/12
	IN100570
	 R   44 679 
	R 8
	5 352
	 R    44 428 
	 R        251 

	19/06/12
	IN100572
	 R   23 764 
	R 8
	2 820
	 R    23 380 
	 R        384 

	19/06/12
	IN100573
	 R   15 758 
	R 8
	1 870
	 R    15 504 
	 R        255 

	07/05/12
	IN100581
	 R         549 
	R 8
	 67
	 R         521 
	 R          28 

	05/10/12
	IN100633
	 R     9 832 
	R 8
	1 115
	 R      9 442 
	 R        390 

	07/03/13
	IN100665
	 R     3 438 
	R 9
	 374
	 R      3 433 
	 R             6 

	28/02/13
	IN100697
	 R     7 598 
	R 9
	 820
	 R      7 249 
	 R        350 


All the invoices were recognised on the incorrect date which resulted in an error of R12 198.

The extrapolated error is R 16 405. 

Internal control deficiency

Management did not ensure there are adequate systems and policies in place ensure that the invoices are captured at the correct date and translated at the correct exchange rate.

 Recommendation
Management should implement a system and put in place policies and procedures to ensure staff capture invoices timeously and uses the correct spot rate.

The error should be investigated and a decision made on whether the financial statements will be adjusted.  Any changes to the financial statements must be communicated to the auditors.

Management comment on audit finding

The finding is noted. However, in order to properly assess the error, we require further detail as to the date on which the spot rate used in the table above. We will then have to compare this with the date of the spot rate used to verify the claims of the Ag.

Management comment on internal control deficiencies:

Noted

Management comment on recommendation:

Based on the provision of further information requested from the AG, the recommendation will be reviewed.

What actions will be taken:

Further information requested from AG

By whom:

AG

By when:
Not specified
Name:
 K Galant

Position:  CEO


Date: 20 June 2013
Auditor’s conclusion
Revenue for services should be recognised when:

“(a) it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and 

(b) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.”
 Once the results from samples are received from the lab, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction flow to the public entity and the amount can be measured reliably. 

The customer should be invoiced at this point; which in these cases above it was only raised after a few months.

We therefore used the spot rate on the date that the lab results were received as our transaction date spot rate. 

As no adjustment was made for this, it remains unresolved and will be included in the management report.

ANNEXURE C: ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

No matters to report.

FINANCIAL INDICATORS
ANNEXURE D

The ratios and trends on which the financial health analysis and discussion in PART B – FINANCIAL INDICATORS under SECTION 3: SPECIFIC FOCUS AREAS is based are set out below.
BUDGETS
	
	
	Indicator reference
	
	Financial statement amounts
	
	Adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements
	
	Financial statement amounts after adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements

	
	
	
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 

	Final approved operating expenditure budget
	
	
	
	15 876 
	
	0 
	
	15876

	Under/(over) spending of the final approved operating expenditure budget
	
	
	
	(2 587) 
	
	0 
	
	(2587)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Final approved capital budget
	
	
	
	154 
	
	0 
	
	154

	Under/(over) spending of the final approved capital budget
	
	
	
	72 
	
	0 
	
	72

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 % 

	Percentage over spending of the final approved operating expenditure budget
	
	1.1
	
	
	
	
	
	16% 

	Percentage under spending of the final approved capital budget
	
	1.2
	
	
	
	
	
	53% 


EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

	
	
	Indicator reference
	
	Financial statement amounts
	
	Adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements
	
	Financial statement amounts after adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements

	
	
	
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 

	Accounts payable
	
	
	
	2 221 
	
	0 
	
	2 221

	Total purchases
	
	
	
	13 194 
	
	0 
	
	13194

	Cash and cash equivalents / (bank overdraft) at year-end
	
	
	
	416
	
	0
	
	416

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 Days 

	Creditor-payment period
(Accounts payable ÷ Total purchases x 365)
	
	2.1
	
	
	
	
	
	61

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 % 

	Creditors as a percentage of cash and cash equivalents
	
	2.2
	
	
	
	
	
	534%


REVENUE MANAGEMENT

	
	
	Indicator reference
	
	Financial statement amounts
	
	Adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements
	
	Financial statement amounts after adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements

	
	
	
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 

	Accounts receivable (before impairment)
	
	
	
	1 140 
	
	0 
	
	1 140

	Debtors impairment provision at year-end
	
	
	
	0 
	
	0 
	
	0

	Total revenue from services rendered for the year
	
	
	
	2 794
	
	0 
	
	2 794

	Debtors written-off for the year
	
	
	
	0 
	
	0 
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 Days 

	Debtor-collection period - before impairment (Days)
(Accounts receivable [before impairment] ÷ Total revenue for services rendered x 365)
	
	3.1
	
	
	
	
	
	149

	Debtor-collection period - after impairment (Days)
(Accounts receivable [after impairment] ÷ Total revenue for services rendered x 365)
	
	3.2
	
	
	
	
	
	n/a

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 % 

	Debtors impairment provision at year-end as a percentage of accounts receivable
	
	3.3
	
	
	
	
	
	n/a

	Debtors written-off for the year as a percentage of total revenue for services rendered for the year (revenue not collected)
	
	3.4
	
	
	
	
	
	n/a


ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

	
	
	Indicator reference
	
	Financial statement amounts
	
	Adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements
	
	Financial statement amounts after adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements

	
	
	
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 

	Total revenue for the year
	
	
	
	17 044 
	
	0 
	
	17 044

	Total expenditure for the year
	
	
	
	(18 463)
	
	0 
	
	(18 463)

	Surplus / (deficit) for the year
	
	4.1
	
	(1 420)
	
	0
	
	(1 420)

	
	
	
	
	 
	
	
	
	

	Total current assets 
	
	
	
	1 993 
	
	0 
	
	1 993

	Total current liabilities 
	
	
	
	3 400 
	
	0 
	
	3 400

	Net current assets / (liabilities)
	
	4.2
	
	(1 407)
	
	0
	
	(1 407)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total non-current assets 
	
	
	
	374 
	
	0 
	
	374

	Total non-current liabilities 
	
	
	
	13 
	
	0 
	
	13

	Net non-current assets / (liabilities)
	
	
	
	361
	
	0
	
	361

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total assets 
	
	
	
	2 367
	
	0
	
	2 367

	Total liabilities 
	
	
	
	(3 413)
	
	0
	
	(3 413)

	Net assets / (liabilities)
	
	4.3
	
	(1 046)
	
	0
	
	(1 046)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents / (bank overdraft) at year-end
	
	4.4
	
	416
	
	0
	
	416

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Net cash flows for the year from operating activities
	
	4.5
	
	(521) 
	
	0 
	
	(521)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Year-end carrying amount of the category(ies) of PPE that were subject to impairment
	
	
	
	0 
	
	 0
	
	0

	Year-end carrying amount of the category(ies) intangible assets that were subject to impairment
	
	
	
	0 
	
	 0
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	0
	
	0
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	
	Indicator reference
	
	Financial statement amounts
	
	Adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements
	
	Financial statement amounts after adjustments for material uncorrected misstatements

	
	
	
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 
	
	 R'000 

	Year-end carrying amount of investments, if subject to impairment
	
	
	
	0 
	
	0 
	
	0

	Year-end carrying amount of loan receivables (loans awarded), if subject to impairment
	
	
	
	 
	
	 
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	0
	
	0
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	PPE impairment provision at year-end
	
	
	
	0 
	
	 0
	
	0

	Intangible assets impairment provision at year-end
	
	
	
	 
	
	 
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	0
	
	0
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Investments impairment provision at year-end
	
	
	
	0 
	
	0 
	
	0

	Loan receivables (loans awarded) impairment provision at year-end
	
	
	
	 
	
	 
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	0
	
	0
	
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 % 

	PPE and intangible assets impairment provisions at year-end as a percentage of the carrying amount of the category(ies) of PPE and intangible assets subject to impairment 
	
	4.6
	
	
	
	
	
	0%

	Loan receivables (loans awarded) and investments impairment provisions at year-end as a percentage of the carrying amount of investments and loans subject to impairment
	
	4.7
	
	
	
	
	
	0%
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